



130th MAINE LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION-2021

Legislative Document

No. 1029

S.P. 324

In Senate, March 10, 2021

**An Act To Amend the Marijuana Legalization Act and the Laws
Governing the Taxation of Marijuana**

(EMERGENCY)

Submitted by the Department of Administrative and Financial Services pursuant to Joint Rule 204.

Reference to the Committee on Veterans and Legal Affairs suggested and ordered printed.

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to read "D M Grant".

DAREK M. GRANT
Secretary of the Senate

Presented by Senator LUCHINI of Hancock.

1 date the department issues the first active cultivation facility license. If the department
2 adopts by rule a later end date for the authorized transfer period under this paragraph,
3 beginning on the effective date of the rule, the department shall use that later end date
4 in providing the authorization that may be granted pursuant to this paragraph to a
5 cultivation facility licensee.

6 B. A cultivation facility licensee authorized pursuant to paragraph A to purchase
7 marijuana plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana flower and marijuana trim from
8 registered caregivers and registered dispensaries that transacts such a purchase shall
9 pay to the State Tax Assessor the excise taxes imposed pursuant to Title 36, chapter
10 723 on the sale of the marijuana plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana flower and
11 marijuana trim. In addition to payment of the required excise taxes under this
12 paragraph, the cultivation facility licensee shall provide the department with an
13 accounting of the transaction, which must include information on the registered
14 caregiver or registered dispensary from which the licensee purchased the marijuana
15 plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana flower and marijuana trim; the number of
16 mature marijuana plants, immature marijuana plants, seedlings and marijuana seeds
17 purchased in the transaction; the amount, by weight, of marijuana flower and marijuana
18 trim purchased in the transaction; and any other information required by the department
19 by rule.

20 C. A cultivation facility licensee authorized pursuant to paragraph A to purchase
21 marijuana plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana flower and marijuana trim from
22 registered caregivers and registered dispensaries may purchase an unlimited number of
23 marijuana plants and marijuana seeds and an unlimited amount of marijuana flower
24 and marijuana trim from more than one registered caregiver or registered dispensary
25 and may transact more than one purchase of marijuana plants and marijuana seeds such
26 items from a registered caregiver or registered dispensary. Until October 1, 2021, a
27 registered caregiver or registered dispensary may not sell marijuana plants and,
28 marijuana seeds, marijuana flower and marijuana trim to more than one cultivation
29 facility licensee authorized pursuant to paragraph A to purchase ~~marijuana plants and~~
30 ~~marijuana seeds~~ such items from registered caregivers and registered dispensaries and
31 may ~~not~~ transact more than one sale of ~~marijuana plants and marijuana seeds~~ such items
32 to a cultivation facility licensee authorized to make such purchases pursuant to
33 paragraph A. The department may by rule extend the end date by which a registered
34 caregiver or registered dispensary may make unlimited authorized transfers to
35 cultivation facility licensees beyond October 1, 2021.

36 (1) If the department adopts by rule a later end date for the unlimited authorized
37 transfers by registered caregivers and registered dispensaries under this paragraph,
38 beginning on the effective date of the rule, the department shall use that later end
39 date.

40 (2) If the department does not adopt by rule a later end date for the unlimited
41 authorized transfers by registered caregivers and registered dispensaries under this
42 paragraph, any registered caregiver or registered dispensary that has already made
43 a transfer or transfers under this paragraph may make one additional authorized
44 transfer to one cultivation facility licensee under this paragraph after October 1,
45 2021. Any registered caregiver or registered dispensary that has not made an
46 authorized transfer before October 1, 2021 may make one authorized transfer to

1 one cultivation facility licensee until such transfers are no longer permitted under
2 paragraph A.

3 D. A cultivation facility licensee that violates this subsection or the rules adopted
4 pursuant to this subsection is subject to the imposition by the department of monetary
5 penalties, a license revocation or suspension and an order directing the destruction of
6 unauthorized marijuana plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana flower and marijuana
7 trim pursuant to subchapter 8 in addition to any criminal or civil penalties that may be
8 imposed pursuant to other applicable laws or rules. A registered caregiver or registered
9 dispensary that violates ~~paragraph C~~ this subsection or the rules adopted pursuant to
10 this subsection is subject to the revocation of its registration or other applicable penalty
11 under the Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act in addition to any criminal or civil
12 penalties that may be imposed pursuant to other applicable laws or rules.

13 The department shall adopt rules to implement this subsection. Rules adopted pursuant to
14 this subsection are routine technical rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter
15 2-A.

16 PART B

17 **Sec. B-1. 36 MRSA §4923, sub-§5**, as enacted by PL 2019, c. 231, Pt. B, §7, is
18 amended to read:

19 **5. Excise tax on purchases from registered caregivers and registered dispensaries.**

20 A cultivation facility licensee authorized pursuant to Title 28-B, section 501, subsection 6,
21 paragraph A to purchase marijuana plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana flower and
22 marijuana trim from registered caregivers and registered dispensaries that transacts such a
23 purchase shall pay to the assessor the excise taxes that would have been imposed under
24 subsections 1 to 4 on the sale of the marijuana plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana
25 flower and marijuana trim if the marijuana plants ~~and~~, marijuana seeds, marijuana flower
26 and marijuana trim had been sold by a cultivation facility licensee to another licensee.

27 **Emergency clause.** In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation
28 takes effect when approved.

29 SUMMARY

30 This bill makes the following changes to the Marijuana Legalization Act and the laws
31 governing the taxation of marijuana.

32 1. It permits an adult use cultivation facility licensee to accept from registered
33 caregivers and registered dispensaries unlimited transfers of marijuana plants, marijuana
34 seeds, marijuana flower and marijuana trim until 2 years after the date the Department of
35 Administrative and Financial Services issues the first active cultivation facility license or
36 a later date set in rule by the department. It permits registered caregivers and registered
37 dispensaries to transfer an unlimited number of marijuana plants and marijuana seeds and
38 an unlimited amount of marijuana flower and marijuana trim to an adult use cultivation
39 facility licensee until October 1, 2021 or a later date set in rule by the department. If the
40 department does not extend by rule the date by which a registered caregiver or registered
41 dispensary may make unlimited authorized transfers to adult use cultivation facility
42 licensees, a registered caregiver or registered dispensary that has already made an
43 authorized transfer may make one more authorized transfer and a registered caregiver or

1 registered dispensary that has not made an authorized transfer may make one authorized
2 transfer to an adult use cultivation facility licensee.

3 2. It requires cultivation facility licensees to remit excise taxes on transfers of
4 marijuana flower and marijuana trim received from a registered caregiver or registered
5 dispensary.